
9 June 2015

NOTICE OF MEETING

Bursledon Windmill Joint Management Committee
will meet on

Wednesday, 17 June 2015
beginning at

10:00 am
in

Bursledon Windmill, Windmill Lane, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 8BG

TO: Councillors A Broadhurst, and Craig 
County Councillors Davidovitz, House and Kyrle
Mr Jackson & Mrs Sutton, Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
Parish Councillors Mrs Andrewes and McCormick
Diccon Bright, Area Co-ordinator 
Hannah Ashworth, Erica Munro and Tim Kelly,Hampshire Cultural Trust 

Staff Contact: Jack Grounds, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 
8068 8026 Email: jack.grounds@eastleigh.gov.uk 
MeetingContact_2 

RICHARD WARD
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

_____________________________________________________________________

AGENDA

Eastleigh House
 Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN



1. Minutes of the Previous Meeting    (Pages 1 - 4)

2. Apologies    

3. Curator's Report    (Pages 5 - 12)

4. Finance Report    (Pages 13 - 16)

5. Annual Small Bodies (Audit) Return    (Pages 17 - 22)

6. Strategic Planning and Culture Conversation Update    (Pages 23 - 26)

7. Future JMA Partnership Funding Agreement Verbal Update    

8. Date and Venue of Next Meeting    



BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 28 January 2015  (11:30 am – 1:10 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillors A Broadhurst, Cross and Kyrle

Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors  

Representing Bursledon Parish Council – Councillor  

Annabel Cook - Hampshire Arts and Museums Service
Mr Jackson - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
Tim Kelly - Hampshire Arts and Museums Service
Diccon Bright - Local Area Co-ordinator

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Tonia Craig, Councillor 
Keith House, Councillor Diane Andrewes and Councillor Colin Davidovitz

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 September 2014 
be approved as a correct record of the meeting.

2. CURATOR'S REPORT

Annabel Cook reported that Erica Munro had joined Hampshire Cultural 
Trust (HCT) as the South East Area Curator in place of Tom de Wit. She 
had come with excellent exhibition experience, with two years as the 
Museum Officer at Gosport Discovery Centre and four years as part of the 
Hampshire Exhibitions team. 

The Committee was updated on the re-opening of the Windmill. The 
opening had been very successful and Cass Productions’ animated film of 
“Phoebe Mouse” had been very popular with visitors. 268 people had 
attended the event on 30 November 2014 and this had created over £600 of 
income for the Windmill. In order to manage the queues of visitors, a 
number of activities had been organised. Activities included a folk band, 
storytellers, tours of the Windmill and refreshments including a Windmill 
birthday cake. The Mayor formally opened the site and comments from 
visitors had all be very positive. The re-opening of the Windmill was also 
attended by BBC South today and ITV Meridian as well as other local press. 

It was reported that following the period of site closure, the team had begun 
training as well as health and safety training. Members of the Team also 
attended a specialist milling training course. This was overseen by SPAB’s 
Vice Chairman Jonathan Cook at Foster’s Mill in Cambridgeshire.

Annabel reported that Gift Aid had been introduced onto the site’s admission 

1

Agenda Item 1



fees and there had been a conversion rate of approximately 80% for Gift 
Aid. 

The Committee were further advised that had been an increase in visitor 
numbers. These numbers reflected the closure of the site and the winter re-
opening. The re-opening in November demonstrated a significant rise in 
visitor numbers. The Windmill had been struggling to meet demand from 
visiting school parties as the site fits very well with the new National 
Curriculum and offers a complete learning experience for visiting school 
children; tours are more interactive, in-depth and longer as a result. 

Tim Kelly gave an update on the proposed toilet block and volunteer room. 
Diccon Bright advised that nothing had been secured and that some funding 
may need to come through community engagement projects and donations 
as a result of a local campaign. Annabel advised that this was certainly a 
possibility that would be explored further. 

In response to a question regarding the position of trees in the areas 
adjacent to the Windmill site, the Committee were informed that following 
investigative work, the removal of trees would make little impact on the 
Windmill and its sails. However, Annabel informed the Committee that an 
update would be provided on this issue. 

Annabel Cook showed a short video clip detailing the Windmill’s restoration 
process and its re-opening. 

3. FINANCE REPORT

Tim Kelly reported that following the previous meeting in September 2014, 
the budget was presented in a different way. He advised that greater 
sources of income were required and that suggestions such as philanthropy 
had been made. The Committee were advised of the recent Heritage Lottery 
Funded programme, Inspiring a Culture of Philanthropy in the Hampshire 
Solent Area. Tim highlighted that the project would create opportunities for 
HCT and other local sites to develop their funding networks and fundraising 
skills. This would then hopefully lead to the use of volunteers with the 
appropriate experience which would directly benefit the running of the 
Windmill. The Committee were also advised the use of gift aid had been 
used on entrance fees to the museum but this could not be extended to any 
classes and workshops because there were different models for the use of 
gift aid. 

Annabel Cook advised the Committee of the income from entrance fees, the 
shop and recent bookings at the Windmill; particularly wedding receptions. 
She informed Members that customers had been delighted with the Windmill 
as a venue and that word of mouth enquiries had increased. The Committee 
discussed the need for greater publicity in relation to bookings and fully 
supported the exploration of the idea of using the Windmill site as a licensed 

2



venue. 

Tim highlighted that the Budget for 2015/16 would be the Windmill’s first 
Budget under the management of the Trust. He informed the Committee 
that the budget for business development had increased as a result of the 
time spent on the Windmill’s re-opening and in order to increase income due 
to these changes. The budget was presented to articulate the changes.

4. DRAFT 2015/16 VENUE PLAN

The Committee were advised that HCT wanted the Windmill to be known for 
an annual August Bank Holiday Weekend Event. Such an event would use 
the Windmill site as a venue for craft workshops with a particular focus on 
traditional crafts which would be related to the historical context of the 
Windmill’s site.  

The main theme for sites across Hampshire in 2015 would be Dinosaurs. 
Annabel Cook informed the Committee that the Windmill’s planned 
contribution to this theme would be a willow-based project that would create 
a Dinosaur sculpture using willow as its material. By using this material, the 
planned sculpture fitted with the traditional crafts theme. 

5. PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE AGREEMENT - HEADS OF TERMS

Tim Kelly advised that the Heads of Terms for Partnership Funding 
Agreement had been drafted by legal officers at Hampshire County Council. 
It was highlighted that as Hampshire County Council had transferred its arts, 
museum and heritage services to HCT, the function of the Committee 
remained the same with regard to the recommended statutory powers. 

6. CULTURAL CONVERSATIONS - HAMPSHIRE CULTURAL TRUST 
UPDATE

Tim Kelly gave a brief statement on behalf of Janet Owen. He advised the 
Committee that in March and April 2015, HCT would hold Cultural 
Conversations. Local stakeholders would be invited to the Trust’s venues 
and given the opportunity to share views and thoughts regarding plans over 
the next ten years. HCT would use this feedback in order to shape its 
programme over this period. 

It was reported that between the 9 March and 30 April 2015, a small, 
evening exhibition would take place in each venue and ideas would be 
brought together over a glass of wine. 

3



7. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING

RESOLVED 

That the next meeting would take place at 10:00 am on 17 June 2015 
with the venue to be decided. 

M5501

4



1

Committee: BURSLEDON WINDMILL
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 17 JUNE 2015
Title of Report: CURATOR’S REPORT
Author: Erica Munro

Purpose:

1  Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Site

1.1 Windmill Service Delivery
After the windmill’s reopening in November 2014, the team have been focussing on getting 
ready to mill flour, increasing access for visitors, recruiting volunteers and raising 
awareness of the Windmill locally, regionally and nationally.

The windmill now opens on Sundays, idling when there is 
sufficient wind to do so. We are keen to begin milling flour 
which we will do when the final elements of the restoration 
are completed, when the team is sufficiently trained in food 
safety and milling processes, and when the windmill has 
been deemed suitable for food production. The months after 
the reopening have been a very useful time for the site 
team to identify any issues with the mechanism after 
restoration. These have all been addressed with only a 
slight misalignment of the first wheel drive to be rectified. 
We can then go ahead with the full cleaning of the mill, 
allowing us to begin producing flour.

Five volunteers have joined the team in this period, 
although we still need many more. We have designed and 
distributed a new recruitment poster, which has been 
shared by Eastleigh Borough Council and promoted on 
Bursledon Parish Council’s website (see photo, right). The 
Curator has developed an illustrated talk combining a 
history of the windmill with an appeal for volunteers. The 
talk was well received by Titchfield Local History Society 
and we plan to offer it to other groups, to promote the windmill and its volunteering 
opportunities.

Report on activities at or relating to Bursledon Windmill
Covering period January to May 2015

5

Agenda Item 3



2

1.2 Visitor Figures

Significantly increased visitor figures in Jan-March 2015 reflect the press coverage of the 
reopened windmill. In order to meet the demand of lots of Sunday visitors, we have 
increased the size of windmill guided tours from 5 to 7 people.

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals

2009 – 
2010 

520 509 192 425 720 390 425 242 214 237 264 396 4534

2010 –
2011

660 612 558 461 801 386 542 327 88 262 473 386 5556

2011 –
2012

581 645 389 435 408 244 261 258 86 159 227 173 3866

2012 –
2013

385 285 227 251 332 316 433 253 188 62 228 364 3314

2013 –
2014

252 299 278 388 489 784 275 215 95 85 227 332 3719

2014 – 
2015 252 422 318 362 0 121 90 290 72 390 332 503 3152

2015-
2016 298 383

2   Caring for Collections, Promoting Access, and Providing Specialist Knowledge 
and Advice

2.1 Caring for collections 
The Accreditation Return for Hampshire Cultural Trust was submitted to Arts Council 
England on 30 April 2015 making them formally aware of the changes in governance and 
management resulting from the transition from local authority management to Trust status. 

The return included a suite of revised collections management policies and plans for the 
Trust that had been updated in the light of the new partnership with Winchester City 
Museums and approved by the Board of Trustees prior to their submission. Having these 
policies will ensure that Bursledon Windmill continues to be an Accredited Museum 
benefiting from membership of the national scheme in many ways, including access to a 
greater range of funding opportunities.

Taxidermy specimens used for the ‘Animals in Winter’ event in January were brought back 
to Chilcomb House and put into quarantine to ensure that they did not introduce any pests 
into the collection in store. 

The Principal Conservator visited Bursledon Windmill in February 2015 to inspect the 
wooden materials on site. A drag rake and sack truck were removed following evidence of 
woodworm activity, but a thorough assessment of the beams of the Chineham Barn 
showed no signs of any active infestation. Advice was given to staff on future condition 
checking processes for the wooden buildings and the wooden artefacts on display.

6



3

2.2 Promoting access to collections, specialist knowledge and advice
A wealth of handling specimens from the county’s Natural Sciences Collection brought the 
workshop about Birds at Bursledon to life for a great number of visitors during Easter 
holidays. Having as large collection of taxidermy and birds eggs, the Trust is able to give 
people the chance to study specimens in detail, which helps them to identify birds in their 
natural environment.

There continue to be requests for images from our collection of historic photographs and 
maps curated by staff at Chilcomb House in Winchester during this period prompted by the 
reopening of the Windmill, including several publishers and TV channels.

3  Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement 

3.1 Formal Education Provision
Over the 5 month period January to May the CELO worked with 117 school pupils in 4 
school groups (school visit bookings are not taken for Jan & Feb due to the cold).

Date School
Key Stage 

& Year 
Group

No. of 
children Type of workshop

3 Mar St Peter’s CE Junior, 
Farnborough KS2 Yr 6 28 Flour Power

4 Mar St Peter’s CE Junior, 
Farnborough KS2 Yr 6 29 Flour Power

30 Mar Leesland Junior, 
Gosport KS2 Yr 3&4 30 Wordy Windmill Creative 

Writing Day

30 Mar Leesland Junior KS2 Yr 3&4 30 Wordy Windmill Creative 
Writing Day

We have not got the renewed interest from schools that we hoped would follow the 
restoration project. Unfortunately schools often find alternative visit venues during a site 
closure and it can take a while to win them back. The CELO is currently working on a new 
flyer for schools detailing the current offer. We also get more enquiries than actual 
bookings, due to teachers’ misconception that the windmill will be running and producing 
flour during their visit or that they can make bread on site (not possible without a hygienic 
kitchen area and second wash basin and extra staff or volunteers for H&S reasons), and 
also due to the lack of facilities which seems to cause concerns. However, there are 3 
further class visits already booked for June and July and hopefully these will now increase.

Feedback is always good. St Peter’s Junior scored us 4 (the top mark) for every aspect of 
their visits. The Leesland teachers said the visit was enjoyable and informative and 
enhanced the children’s descriptive and technical writing.

7



4

3.2 Community Engagement and Learning
The Front of House team have been adding to the CEL offer, with special Sunday activity 
(e.g. for British Science Week in March) and providing tours for out-of-hours group visits 
where they do not require a learning workshop, such as for U3A groups and classic car 
societies. These group visits represent a growing service with ten requests received since 
March 2015.

The CELO planned and delivered the “Windmill Wednesday” family workshop in the Easter 
holiday. 42 participants enjoyed learning all about Birds at Bursledon in the “Twitter” 
workshop. With a wealth of handling specimens from the natural science collections, 
science activities such as using keys and examining feathers under a microscope, 
identifying birds’ eggs and birdsong, and going on a marked spotter’s trail around the 
woodland, there was plenty to do, and children finished off by making a feathery bird mask 
and a bird model. Visitors’ feedback included:

“Very friendly, helpful staff, lots to learn and fun.”

“Very well run by great volunteers. We enjoyed our time very much.”

and the rather enigmatic “Better than I thought it would be.”

The trail proved particularly popular, and the changeable trail marker boards purchased as 
part of the HLF activity plan are a great asset.

‘Twitter’ family workshop, 8 April

8



5

For May half term the CELO engaged a professional artist funded by Hampshire Futures 
to run a mural making event as the Windmill Wednesday family activity. This was enjoyed 
by 43 participants who gave us wonderful feedback:

“What a lovely activity. We had a great time, made to feel so welcome.”

“I have been amazed at the quality of artwork produced. We have been very 
welcomed and supported by all the staff today. Thank you for this opportunity.”

“The boys really enjoyed themselves. We would definitely come again.”

“This course has been wonderful!”

A family enjoying the Mural May-kers workshop, 27 May

The CELO has 2 further Wednesday activities coming up in the summer holiday.

The CELO has also organised a programme of adult leisure learning at the windmill for the 
summer months. 6 day courses have been arranged and marketed, from felt making to 
early 19th century outdoor cookery!

Currently, the CELO and Curator are working with Artswork on a Young Roots HLF bid to 
work with 3 young carers’ groups on a project to produce a theatre production about 
Phoebe Langtry, a photographic exhibition of images of the site, and a set of outreach 
resources

9



6

4   Marketing and Communications

4.1 Printed material
In May 2015 a south east area What's On leaflet, with a print run of 12,500 was produced. 
This covered the period from June to September and is being professionally distributed 
throughout the region to TICs, libraries, museums, accommodation providers, educational 
establishments, attractions, arts centres, theatres etc.

4.2 Press coverage
The reopening in November has led to 
interest from the press and magazines. In 
this January to May period, the windmill 
has appeared in features in Hampshire 
Life, Country Life and Heritage Spirit. A 
photographer from Rex Features produced 
stock images of the windmill and barn 
which are now publicly available.

4.3 Online marketing
Events at Bursledon Windmill feature on a monthly basis via the Hampshire County 
Council cultural e-newsletter, Showcase. Showcase is now reaching over 30,000 
subscribers and regularly features both an exhibition and an object of the month as well as 
signposting recipients to events in the their local area.

The e-newsletter Museums Monthly, recently rebranded as HCT, is sent to sign ups on a 
new database created for use by Hampshire Cultural Trust. The first issue was sent out on 
5 May to 2,500 people.
 
4.4 Research
Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at key sites over two three-monthly 
periods - January to March and June to August. These are profiled using Mosaic software 
and provide ongoing information on which groups of people are using and not using our 
services and how individual visitor profiles compare to the local area.  This feeds into the 
service and marketing planning processes. Postcodes are collected for the January to 
March period are in the process of being profiled.
 
4.5 Social Media
The Facebook page and Twitter feed set up to promote exhibitions and events at HCC 
Museums Service have now been rebranded as Hampshire Cultural Trust. Facebook now 
has nearly 2,000 “likes” and twitter over 3,000 followers. Content has been scheduled in 
until June and planning is taking place for the next few months.

In an effort to increase our virtual presence and engagement with the public, members of 
the local team took part in Digital Narratives – a workshop programme about digital 
possibilities at heritage sites. A grant has enabled us to buy a tablet and digital 
connectivity so that we can start using Instagram and Twitter on site. This will be 
particularly exciting when have started milling when we can share images of the process 
on social media.

4.6 The Ambassador Scheme

10



7

Launched at the HCT launch event, this central project has created over 40 Founding 
Ambassadors who have pledged their support to the Trust and donated vital funds. Whilst 
we will offer these Ambassadors one or two special invitations in return for their 
generosity, this income will help support venues across the Trust.

4.7 The Culture Card
The card is now available and will shortly be on offer in all sites and online. This annual 
pass scheme for all the Trust’s sites includes some partners  (Itchen Valley/Portsmouth 
Historic Dockyard) and includes free entry for a family of four to all HCT venues.

HCT’s CEO Janet Owen and Chair of Trustees Alan Lovell launching the Culture Card in April 2015

Erica Munro
June 2015

11



This page is intentionally left blank



BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

16 JUNE 2015

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15 & 2015/16

Introduction
In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council, the net cost of running Bursledon Windmill is 
shared between the partner authorities. 

This report provides an update on the 2015/16 budget.  Please note that the 2014/15 actuals span the periods when venues were run by HCC (April – 
Oct) and Hampshire Cultural Trust (Nov to Mar).

Description of  2015/16 Budget
The 2015/16 budget for Bursledon Windmill provided in Appendix 1 reflects proposed partner contributions as follows: 

1. Venue Management - salaries
Includes venue management and curatorship salaries and on costs.

2. Venue Management - costs
This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and maintenance cost based on the average costs during 
11/12, 12/13 and 13/14.  Due to annual fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will be higher 
as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  Hampshire County Council will continue to pick up any such 
overspend in years where more work needs to be done.

3. Public Programmes (exhibitions)
This charge contributes towards the cost of the Exhibitions team and includes display development, transport, setting up and taking down, cases for 
local exhibitions, insurance, marketing and research relating to new exhibitions.

4. Collections 
This charge contributes to the care, curatorship and management of all collections relating to Bursledon Windmill, organised within the disciplines 
of Archaeology, The Arts, Natural Sciences and Social & Industrial History. The Service will continue to store, manage and provide public access to 
these important collections and make them available to the local community in support of exhibitions, displays and activities.

5. Area Learning and Engagement 
The Community Engagement and Learning team are responsible for the design, creation, marketing and delivery of participatory learning sessions 
for young people in school and family groups, as well as other collections learning activity in both informal and formal settings, both within the 
museum and beyond in to the community.

13

A
genda Item

 4



6. Business Development
Business development and marketing functions form the bulk of this cost. Marketing functions include visitor research, targeted marketing 
campaigns, museum and What’s On leaflets, posters, website development, email marketing, advertising and media relations leading to free 
editorial and promotions. Business development provides strategic guidance and direction, monitors performance, levers funding from external 
sources including Renaissance and Arts Council, and liaises closely with senior councillors and officers where appropriate.

These budget headings reflect the headings in the Venue Plan, making it easier to understand where money is being spent and how Bursledon 
Windmill directly benefits. The budget has been modelled to include staff increments and the 1% pay award. They also include more accurate 
projections in relation to VAT costs, the financial activity which will be included in the trading arm and projected income from gift aid (where applicable). 

The Trust strategy takes a more business-focused approach.  Key aims include:

a) The centrally provided exhibition programmes will be increasingly cost-effective and commercial with the objective of increasing visitors and 
income. Stronger connections will be made between the community museum and flagship venue programmes: for example, Hampshire’s Big 
Theme 2014 (1914 – Commemorating World War 1); Lego Lost Worlds Zoo

b) Expenditure in marketing (both print-based and digital) will increase in support of these programmes and their income/ visitor targets
c) Expenditure in fundraising will increase in support of meeting revenue external investment targets
d) Expenditure in business development expertise will be maintained and strengthened to support long-term development plans, revenue and 

capital investment for culture across Hampshire, including in Eastleigh Borough
e) Levering additional investment for public programming across all venues, including into Eastleigh Borough. It will be allocated across arts and 

museums public programmes on an annual basis or in relation to specific projects which have secured external investment, with priority given to 
partners demonstrating most strategic commitment.

In addition, we intend to report from time to time on external investment secured and/applied for, and in kind support generously received from 
volunteers, trustees, businesses and other individuals and/or organisations.  

An example of this external benefit is the recently secured Heritage Lottery Funded programme - Inspiring a Culture of Philanthropy in the Hampshire 
Solent Area. This project will create opportunities for the Hampshire Cultural Trust and other Museums in the area to develop their fundraising networks 
and skills. This three-year programme aims to create a culture of philanthropy, and inspire a real step change for both the sector and the philanthropic 
community in the Hampshire Solent area. 

Recommendation
That the 2014/15 actuals and 2015/16 budget update are noted by the committee.

14



Appendix 1

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM Budget Actuals Budget BURSLEDON WINDMILL Budget Actuals Budget
  to 31 Dec   to 31 Dec
EXPENDITURE 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16 EXPENDITURE 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16
 £  £   £ £
Venue Management - salaries 12,124 9,607 9,663 Venue Management - salaries 21,241 22,076 31,301
Venue Management - costs* 19,932 11,667 19,264 Venue Management - costs* 7,562 5,937  
Public Programmes (exhibitions) 21,004 21,004 18,433 Public Programmes (exhibitions) 4,789 4,789 4,608
Collections 42,941 42,941 45,421 Collections 6,611 6,611 11,355
Area Learning and Engagement 17,728 17,728 24,431 Area Learning and Engagement 23,474 23,474 24,431
Business Development 13,843 13,843 22,577 Business Development 13,843 13,843 22,577
Total Expenditure 127,571 116,790 139,789 Total Expenditure 77,519 76,730 94,272
Income 5,848 4,830 6,695 Income 4,098 3,051 6,695
Net Expenditure 121,723 111,960 133,094 Net Expenditure 73,421 73,679 87,577

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE Budget Actuals Budget
  to 31 Dec Proposed
 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16
Total Eastleigh Museum 121,723 111,960 133,094
Total Bursledon Windmill 73,421 73,679 87,577
TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 195,143 185,639 220,671

INCOME
HCC / HCT combined income 

budgets 

Hampshire 
Cultural 

Trust 
 Budget Actuals Budget 
  to August (indicative) 
 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16
Hampshire County Council / Hampshire 
Cultural Trust 134,743 125,239 160,271
EBC Contribution - Eastleigh Museum 30,000 30,000 30,000
EBC Contribution - Bursledon Windmill 27,728 27,728 27,728
BPC Contribution - Bursledon Windmill 2,672 2,672 2,672
TOTAL INCOME 195,143 185,639 220,671

15



* This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and maintenance cost based 
on the average actual costs during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14 (due to annual fluctuations in property and 
maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will be higher as works need to be carried out and 
in other years the burden will be lighter.  HCC will continue to pick up any such overspend in years when more 
work needs to be done).

16



Committee Bursledon Windmill JMC

Date of meeting 17 June 2015

Title of report Annual small bodies return 2014/15

Author Rob Sarfas

Purpose of report: 
To present the annual small bodies return for 2014/15 for approval by the JMC and 
submission to external audit

1. Introduction 

1.1. Bursledon Windmill JMC is required to submit an annual return by 30 June 
2015 summarising its financial activities for the financial year 1 April 2014 to 31 
March 2015.  This return comprises four sections:

 accounting statements

 annual governance statement

 external auditor’s certificate and opinion

 internal auditor’s report  

2. Annual governance statement 

2.1. Members of the JMC are asked to confirm, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, whether they agree with eight statements in respect of the accounting 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

2.2. A copy of the annual governance statement for 2014/15 is attached at 
Appendix B. Committee is requested to consider and approve the annual 
governance statement, so it can be signed by the Chair and the Committee 
Clerk and submitted for audit.

2.3. The hard copy of the return for completion will be brought to the meeting.
2.4. Appendix A contains some notes to aid discussion of the annual governance 

statement, split to reflect the periods before and after transfer to the Hampshire 
Cultural Trust.

3. Accounting statements 2014/15
3.1. The accounting statements provide a high level summary of the 2014/15 

financial activity of Bursledon Windmill JMC and are attached at Appendix C. 

17

Agenda Item 5



3.2. The Committee is requested to approve the accounting statements, so they can 
be signed by the Chair and submitted for audit.

4. External auditor’s certificate and opinion
4.1. BDO LLP are the appointed external auditors for Bursledon Windmill JMC and 

will complete this section of the return following the conclusion of their audit.

5. Internal auditor’s report
5.1. An internal audit of Bursledon Windmill JMC is carried out once every three 

years as part of a risk assessed cyclical programme. Under this programme, 
the last audit was carried out in 2013/14.

5.2. Where appropriate, reliance is placed on assurance work carried out on HCC 
corporate systems used by the museum to avoid duplication and additional cost 
to the body. 

5.3. The internal auditor’s report is attached to the hard copy of the annual return.

6. Recommendations
6.1. That the annual governance statement for 2014/15 is agreed by the Committee 

and signed by the Chair and Clerk.
6.2. That the accounting statement for 2014/15 is approved by the Committee and 

signed by the Chair.
6.3. That the internal audit report is noted and any action agreed as appropriate 

(internal audit report to be tabled on the day of the meeting).

18



Appendix A
Bursledon Windmill JMC – Annual Governance Statement

For the period 1 April 2014 to 31 October 2014:

1. The Bursledon Windmill JMC budgets are governed by the financial standing 
orders and procedures of Hampshire County Council (HCC), with accounts 
prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom.

2. HCC’s financial systems and procedures ensure segregation of duties, 
including financial limits of responsibility. 

Fraud and irregularity prevention, detection and investigation is covered by 
HCC’s internal auditors, including the assessment of the effectiveness of 
controls and detection processes.

3. The accounts are prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. 

4. A “Notice of Public Rights” is displayed at the museum each year, inviting 
anyone to arrange a time to inspect the accounts between specific dates (20 
working days).

5. The museum is not owned by the Joint Management Committee and therefore 
all associated risks and liabilities arising from the land and built assets remain 
with the owners. The JMC is therefore only responsible for the financial risks 
associated with the running of Bursledon Windmill JMC. 

Funding is provided to cover all costs on an annual basis by Eastleigh Borough 
Council, Bursledon Parish Council, HCC and income generation. The museum 
does not therefore carry deficits or accrue reserves.

Risk is covered through reporting to the JMC, including the regular reports of 
the Curator.

The Bursledon Windmill staff are currently employed by Hampshire County 
Council. The staff work under the operational procedures, including financial 
and health and safety, of Hampshire County Council.

Budgets and updates are produced for the Joint Management Committee by 
officers from HCC’s Arts & Museums Service. Financial support is provided by 
Hampshire County Council, as is the internal audit service.

6. Bursledon Windmill uses HCC’s financial systems and procedures. 

Internal audit of Bursledon Windmill is carried out on a cyclical basis (currently 
once every three years) with reliance placed on assurance work carried out on 
HCC’s corporate systems to avoid duplication and additional costs for the JMC. 
This is considered an appropriate, proportionate and risk based approach to the 
internal audit requirements of the museum.

19



7. Officers have responded to matters brought to their attention via internal and 
external audits. 

8. The annual financial accounts take into account everything relating to each 
financial year regardless of when the activity took place.

For the period 1 November 2014 to 31 March 2015:

1. The Bursledon Windmill JMC budgets are governed by the financial standing 
orders and procedures of Hampshire Cultural Trust (HCT), whose accounts are 
prepared in accordance with the Charity Commission Statement of 
Recommended Practice.

2. HCT’s financial systems and procedures ensure segregation of duties, 
including financial limits of responsibility. 

Fraud and irregularity prevention, detection and investigation is covered by 
Hampshire County Council’s internal auditors, including the assessment of the 
effectiveness of controls and detection processes.

3. The accounts are prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

4. A “Notice of Public Rights” is displayed at the museum each year, inviting 
anyone to arrange a time to inspect the accounts between specific dates (20 
working days).

5. The museum is not owned by the Joint Management Committee and therefore 
all associated risks and liabilities arising from the land and built assets remain 
with the owners. The JMC is therefore only responsible for the financial risks 
associated with the running of Bursledon Windmill JMC. 

Funding is provided to cover all costs on an annual basis by Eastleigh Borough 
Council, Bursledon Parish Council, HCC and income generation. The museum 
does not therefore carry deficits or accrue reserves.

Risk is covered through reporting to the JMC, including the regular reports of 
the Curator.

The Bursledon Windmill staff are currently employed by Hampshire Cultural 
Trust. The staff work under the operational procedures, including financial and 
health and safety, of HCT.

Budgets and updates are produced for the Joint Management Committee by 
officers from HCT. Financial support is provided by Hampshire County Council, 
as is the internal audit service.

6. Bursledon Windmill  uses HCT’s financial systems and procedures, which are 
operated through HCC. 

20



Internal audit of Bursledon Windmill is carried out on a cyclical basis (currently 
once every three years) with reliance placed on assurance work carried out on 
HCC’s corporate systems to avoid duplication and additional costs for the JMC. 
This is considered an appropriate, proportionate and risk based approach to the 
internal audit requirements of the museum.

7. Officers have responded to matters brought to their attention via internal and 
external audits. 

8. The annual financial accounts take into account everything relating to each 
financial year regardless of when the activity took place.

21



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Committee: Eastleigh
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 8th June 2015
Title of Report: Strategic Planning and Culture Conversation
Author: Hannah Ashwell

Purpose:

a) Strategic Planning and the Culture Conversation

Having recently taken responsibility for the operation of over 20 arts and museums 
attractions across the county, including Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum, 
Hampshire Cultural Trust wanted to share with the public our plans for a vibrant culture in 
the Eastleigh area. A ‘Culture Conversation’ roadshow took place in March and April 2015, 
which was an opportunity for Trust staff to meet with residents, businesses and community 
groups to discover their ambitions for the Eastleigh area and how our work should be 
helping them all. 

A series of information panels and a short film were displayed in prominent places at 
Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon Windmill throughout March, April and May, and a survey 
invited visitors to share their thoughts and comments.

Hampshire Cultural Trust will launch its Strategic Plan at the first AGM/Core Partner 
meeting on 15th July 2015 which will reflect the ambitions of the Trust for the next five 
years and beyond. Feedback from the roadshow and survey will influence the 
development of the strategic plan.

b) Culture Conversation information panels

Eastleigh and Bursledon

Panel 1: Hampshire Cultural Trust

We are a new independent charity that operates and funds over 20 arts and museums venues across 
Hampshire.

We want to deliver great cultural experiences on your doorstep, with the power to change lives. 

Our vision is to champion world-class culture in Hampshire. 
We exist to showcase, connect and empower Hampshire’s culture and creative economy. Working in 
partnership with a variety of organisations we help culture support economic regeneration, nurture local 
talent and inspire happiness and fulfilment.

Panel 2: In Eastleigh: Now

Hampshire Cultural Trust runs Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum.

An update on Hampshire Cultural Trust’s strategic planning and the ‘Culture 
Conversation’

23

Agenda Item 6



2

2013/14
Eastleigh
No of Visitors – 23,429
No of exhibitions – 7
No of volunteers – 30
Young people reached – 5360

Panel 3: In Eastleigh: Future Plans

Within 2 years:

We will deliver a more vibrant offer in our venues, creating exciting ‘culture stops’ with:
 Improved café and retail experiences, including free Wi-Fi
 Assortment of arts and history events in both our venues, daytime and evening
 Mini town centre festival events in partnership with local business and culture partners

We will continue to develop our work with vulnerable people from all ages and backgrounds to help provide 
better life chances.

Within 5 years:

We aim to modernise our sites so that Eastleigh residents and visitors get a truly inspirational and memorable 
cultural experience. Options include:

 Developing opportunities for Hampshire makers (food producers  and craftspeople) at 
Bursledon Windmill

 Redevelop Eastleigh Museum in partnership with One Community to create a community 
heritage venue that brings the past to life through displays and interactive digital story-
telling.

Panel 4: Your Views and Support

We are interested in your views and ideas about how we can support your cultural, social and economic 
needs. 

Please complete the short survey provided and you will be entered into our competition to win a fantastic 
prize.

We would love you to get involved in our work so please consider making a pledge to Hampshire Cultural 
Trust.

c) 
Feedback from the Culture Conversation in Eastleigh and Bursledon
The Culture Conversation roadshow was attended by 25 people from the community 
including volunteers, audience members and businesses in the local area.  

d) Next steps

24



3

The new Director of Communications and Development, Jane Baker, is now in post and 
will start conversations with the Eastleigh Borough Council team about marketing.

Investigations are taking place into mini festivals and site animating projects which may 
impact various locations around the county.

These initiatives will combine to create a framework for long term cultural development in 
the borough. 

25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Curator's Report
	4 Finance Report
	5 Annual Small Bodies (Audit) Return
	6 Strategic Planning and Culture Conversation Update

